
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday, 16th October, 2012 

 
4.30 pm 

 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 

Maidstone 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL  

 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

Tuesday, 16 October 2012, at 4.30 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait 
in the Wantsum Room, Sessions 
House, County Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 01622 694342 

 
Membership (9) 
 
Conservative (7): Mr P J Homewood (Chairman), Mr P B Carter, Mr M C Dance, 

Mr A J King, MBE, Mr B J Sweetland, Mr M J Whiting and 
Mrs J Whittle 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mrs T Dean 
 

Labour (1) Mr G Cowan 
 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 

1. Substitutes  

2. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

3. Minutes - 5 October 2012 (Pages 1 - 2) 

4. New Governance Arrangements for Kent County  Council - Changes to the 
Constitution (Pages 3 - 26) 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

 (At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such 
items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
 
 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
 
Monday, 8 October 2012 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Selection and Member Services Committee held in the 
Swale 2, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 5 October 2012. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P J Homewood (Chairman), Mr M C Dance, Mr G Cowan, 
Mrs T Dean, Mr A J King, MBE, Mr B J Sweetland and Mrs J Whittle 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr G Wild (Director of Governance and Law), Mr P D Wickenden 
(Democratic Services Transition Manager) and Mrs A Hunter (Principal Democratic 
Services Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
23. Minutes - 25 July 2012  
(Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2012 are correctly 
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman. 
 
24. New Governance arrangements for Kent County Council - Review  
(Item 4) 
 
(1) The report and supplementary information tabled at the meeting invited the 
Committee to consider and make suggestions for the structure of the debate at the 
County Council meeting on 25 October 2012 to review the operation of the new 
governance arrangements introduced on 1 April 2012.  
 
(2) RESOLVED that:  
 

(a) Officers be asked to consider how items for information and minor 
administrative decision for executive decision might be included in the agenda 
for Cabinet Committees; 
 
(b) Officers be asked to prepare a report for Council drawing out the 
comments and suggestions of the Committee; 
 
(c) A further meeting of the Selection and Member Services Committee be 
held before the next Council meeting to consider proposed changes to the 
Personnel Rules and the Property Management Protocol and a small change 
to Article 11, Paragraph 11.5 of the Council’s Constitution.  

 
 
25. Induction Programme following the May 2013 Elections  
(Item 5) 
 
(1) The report set out options for an induction programme following the County 
Council elections on 2 May 2013.  
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

2 

(2) RESOLVED that: 
 

(a) The shape and content of the induction programme for the new County 
Council as set out in the report subject to the inclusion of “shadow a social 
worker” scheme be approved; 
 
(b) An officer conduit and Member Mentor be made available to newly 
elected Members of the County Council; 
 
(c) The Member Development Programme be implemented as set out at 
Appendix 2 of the report.  

 
26. Regulation Committee Terms of Reference  
(Item 6) 
 
(1) The report invited the County Council to consider a change to the Terms of 
Reference of the Regulation Committee to enable the Committee to consider 
opposed Traffic Regulation Orders affecting public rights of way.  This change 
included enabling a Panel of the Regulation Committee to hear evidence from those 
supporting or opposing order. 
 
(2) It was unclear to the Committee as to where the most appropriate place for 
this function should be allocated in terms of the County Councils constitution i.e. a 
Council function or Executive function. The Committee also sought information on 
whether it might best be placed with for example the Joint Transportation Board 

 
(3)  RESOLVED: that the Head of Democratic Services in conjunction with the 
Director of Customer and Communities consider the appropriate decision making 
process for Traffic Regulation Orders relating to Public Rights of Way and report back 
to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
27. County Councils Network (CCN)  
(Item 7) 
 
(1) The report asked the Committee to confirm the appointment to the County 
Councils’ Network of Mr A J King in place of Mr N Chard. 
 
(2) RESOLVED that the appointment of Mr King to the County Councils’ Network 
be confirmed. 
 
 

Page 2



By:  Alex King, Deputy Leader 

  Geoff Wild, Director of Governance and Law 

To:  Selection and Member Services Committee – 16 October 2012 

Subject: New Governance Arrangements for Kent County Council – Changes to the 
Constitution

Summary: This report recommends changes to the County Council’s Constitution to 
reflect the new governance arrangements. 

1. Introduction 

(1) At its meeting on 5 October 2012, the Selection and Member Services 
Committee agreed it should meet again to consider proposed changes to the 
Personnel Management Rules and the Property Protocol to enable the Committee to 
make recommendations to the County Council on 25 October 2012. 

(2) It also requested the Director of Governance and Law to give further 
consideration to the proposed change to Article 11 to enable resources to be made 
available to the Head of Paid Service. 

2. Personnel Management Rules and Property Protocol 

(1) Attached as Appendix 1 are the amended Personnel Management Rules and 
Property Protocol, which have been updated to reflect the new governance 
arrangements.

(2) The Committee is asked to consider the proposed changes and make 
recommendations to the County Council. 

3. Article 11 – Provision of Resources to the Director of Finance and 
Monitoring Officer 

(1) Attached as Appendix 2 is the consideration by the Director of Governance and 
Law in relation to a change to Article 11 to enable resources to be made available to 
the Head of Paid Service. 

(2) The Committee is asked to consider the proposed changes and make 
recommendations to the County Council. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



4. Recommendations

That the Committee recommends to the County Council for approval: 

(a) The amended Personnel Management Rules and Property Protocol; and 

(b) The amendment to Article 11 paragraph 11(5) to read: 

“Provision of sufficient resources to the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer with such officers’ accommodation and other resources 
as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.” 

Contact:
Paul Wickenden 
Democratic Services Transition Manager 
paul.wickenden@kent.gov.uk
Ext 4486 

Page 4



Appendix 2 Part 6: 
Personnel Management Rules 

Staff Terms and Conditions 

1. The Council, on the recommendation of the Leader, determines changes to 
the pay scales of Kent Scheme Salaries.  All other matters of staff terms and 
conditions (other than those imposed by national agreements) are delegated to the 
Personnel Committee.

Senior Managers

2. “Senior Manager” means Corporate Directors and Directors at grade KR16 or 
above. 

3. The quorum of the Personnel Committee, or any sub-committee of that 
Committee, when considering any appointment or disciplinary action under rules 4-
14, below, must include a member of the Cabinet as a voting member.

Appointment of Senior Managers 

4. Rules 4-9 apply to the appointment of Senior Managers. 

5. For all such appointments the Corporate Director of Human Resources or their 
nominee shall: 

(a) draw up a statement specifying: 

(i) the duties of the post; and 
(ii) any qualifications or qualities required; 

(b) make suitable arrangements for the post to be externally 
advertised to bring it to the attention of suitably qualified persons 
(unless applicants are to be sought only from among the 
Council’s existing staff); and 

(c) make arrangements for the statement in paragraph (a) above to 
be sent to any person on request. 

6. In all cases either all qualified applicants or a selected short-list will be 
interviewed by the Personnel Committee or Member Panel (sub-committee) acting as 
the Appointing Body, with the Corporate Director of Human Resources (or other 
Senior Manager as determined by the Committee or Panel) acting as adviser to the 
Appointing Body. When appointing the Head of Paid Service, which is an 
appointment made by the County Council, the Appointing Body will report to the 
Council with a recommendation.

7. Where no suitably qualified person has applied, the post shall be re-
advertised. 

Appendix 1 

Deleted: to the

Deleted: of 

Deleted: Chief and 

Deleted: Officers

Deleted: In these rules 

Deleted:  Chief Officers, i.e. 
the Head of Paid Service, 
statutory chief officers (Director 
of Children’s Services, Director 
of Adult Services, Chief 
Education Officer and Chief 
Finance Officer), non-statutory 
chief officers (officers who 
report directly to the Head of 
Paid Service); and Deputy 
Chief Officers, i.e. officers on

Deleted:  who report directly to 
a Chief Officer for all or most of 
their duties

Deleted: 6

Deleted: Personnel & 
Development

Deleted: his

Deleted: set out in the table 
below:

Deleted: Post ... [1]

Page 5



8. When a Senior Manager ceases to hold that post or is likely to be absent for 
any length of time, the Head of Paid Service, after consultation with the political 
group leaders, may appoint someone to act temporarily in that capacity and 
determine the salary to be paid. The temporary appointment shall not extend beyond 
six months without the approval of the Personnel Committee. Similarly, the Head of 
Paid Service may, after consultation with the political group leaders, appoint an 
interim senior manager to undertake a specific role that does not currently exist in the 
Establishment and determine the rate of remuneration. These appointments shall not 
extend beyond six months without the approval of the Personnel Committee. 

9. No offer of an appointment to a Senior Manager may be made until: 

(1) the Monitoring Officer has recorded the name of the person to be 
offered the appointment and any other particulars the Committee (or other appointing 
body or person) considers relevant to the appointment 

(2) that information has been sent by the Monitoring Officer to the Leader 
and all members of the Cabinet with a date and time by which any objection to the 
making of the offer can be made by the Leader 

(3) the Monitoring Officer has confirmed that the date and time for 
objection by the Leader has elapsed and either: 

(i) in the case of the Head of Paid Service, the Council has 
confirmed the appointment after consideration of any such objection 
and resolving that it is not material or not well-founded; or 

(ii) in all other cases, no such objection has been made or the 
appointing body has considered any such objection and has resolved or 
decided that the objection is not material or not well-founded. 

10. The Chairman of the Standards Committee shall be consulted before a new or 
existing officer is appointed or designated as Monitoring Officer; and their views shall 
be presented to the Committee (or other appointing body or person).

Disciplinary Action 

11. Disciplinary action or suspension during investigation of allegations of 
misconduct in relation to the Head of Paid Service and other Senior Managers may 
only be taken as provided in the table below: 

 Suspension Investigation Disciplinary Action/ 
Dismissal/Appeal 

Head of Paid 
Service 

Personnel 
Committee on 
advice from the 
Corporate Director 
of Human
Resources and 
Monitoring Officer 
or

Designated 
independent person 
appointed by 
Personnel Committee 

Report to Personnel 
Committee or Council 

Council 

Deleted: (or what other 
arrangements are put in place 
by the County Council) 

Deleted: his 

Deleted:  Personnel

Deleted: Personnel & 
Development

Page 6



the Corporate 
Director of Human 
Resources, if 
Committee cannot 
be convened 

Chief Finance 
Officer and 
Monitoring 
Officer

Personnel 
Committee on 
advice from the 
Head of Paid 
Service and/or 
Corporate Director 
of Human 
Resources
or
Head of Paid 
Service and/or 
Corporate Director 
of Human 
Resources, if 
Committee cannot 
be convened 

Designated 
independent person 
appointed by 
Personnel Committee 

Report to Personnel 
Committee

Personnel Committee 

Appeal to a panel of 
Members appointed by 
the Selection & Member 
Services Committee 

Other Senior 
Managers
(Corporate 
and other 
Directors)

Personnel 
Committee on 
advice from the 
Head of Paid 
Service and/or 
Corporate Director 
of Human 
Resources
or
Head of Paid 
Service and/or 
Corporate Director 
of Human 
Resources, if 
Committee cannot 
be convened  

Other officer or 
independent person 
appointed by the 
Personnel Committee 
or Head of Paid 
Service and/or 
Corporate Director of 
Human Resources

Report to Personnel 
Committee or Head of 
Paid Service and/or 
Corporate Director of 
Human Resources

Personnel Committee 
or Head of Paid Service
and/or Corporate 
Director of Human 
Resources

Appeal to a panel of 
Members appointed by 
the Selection & Member 
Services Committee 

12. No disciplinary action, other than suspension as provided for above, may be 
taken in respect of the Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer or Monitoring 
Officer other than in accordance with a recommendation in a report made by a 
designated independent person under regulation 7 of the Local Authorities (Standing 
Orders) (England) Regulations 2001. 

13. All suspended officers shall be on full pay during the investigation of the 
alleged misconduct, which must be completed no later than two months after the 
suspension takes effect (subject to any direction by the designated independent 
person in the case of the Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer or Monitoring 
Officer). 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0
cm, First line:  0 cm

Deleted:  Personnel & 
Development

Page 7



14. The Chairman of the Standards Committee shall be consulted after any 
investigation of an allegation of misconduct by the Monitoring Officer; and his advice 
shall be presented to the Personnel Committee. 

Dismissal of a Chief or Senior Officer 

15. No decision to dismiss the Head of Paid Service or other Senior Manager shall 
take effect until: 

(1) the Monitoring Officer has recorded the name of the person to be 
dismissed and any other particulars the Personnel Committee (or other responsible 
body or person) considers relevant to the dismissal 

(2) that information has been sent by the Monitoring Officer to the Leader 
and all members of the Cabinet with a date and time by which any objection to the 
dismissal can be made by the Leader 

(3) the Monitoring Officer has confirmed that the date and time for 
objection by the Leader has elapsed and either the Council (in the case of the Head 
of Paid Service) or the responsible body (in all other cases) has considered any such 
objection and has resolved or decided that the objection is not material or not well-
founded. 

Appeals 

16. Any appeal must be lodged with the Monitoring Officer (or the Head of Paid 
Service in the case of an appeal by the Monitoring Officer) within 10 working days of 
written confirmation to the officer of the disciplinary action and must include a written 
statement of the grounds on which the appeal is made. 

17. Subject to these rules, all disciplinary procedures, including hearings and 
appeals, shall be conducted as far as possible in accordance with the provisions of 
the Kent Scheme of Conditions of Service. 

18. Appeal hearings shall not include Members involved in the decision to take 
disciplinary action.

Appeals against dismissal arising from redundancy, assimilation, transfer and 
downgrading 

19. Any appeal against a decision not to 'slot' a senior manager to a post graded 
KR 16 or above, a redundancy, transfer or downgrading must be lodged with the 
Corporate Director of Human Resources within 10 working days of written 
confirmation to the officer of the decision and must include a written statement of the 
grounds on which the appeal is made. 

20. Appeals will be heard by the Personnel Committee, or a sub committee
(Panel) of that Committee. As far as is practical, such hearings will be arranged 
within 10 working days of an appeal being lodged. If the Appeal is heard by a Panel 
of members then the quorum of such meeting shall include a Cabinet Member.  

Deleted: (or what other 
arrangements are put in place 
by the County Council) 

Deleted: a

Deleted: M

Deleted: for

Deleted: Personnel and 
Development 

Page 8



Other Officers 

21. Members may not take part in the appointment of any other officers (except 
assistants for political groups) nor in any disciplinary or dismissal action, except as 
provided for above. 

Delegations to Officers 

22. Officers at the level stated and above are empowered to take the decisions 
about staff set out in the Kent Scheme of Conditions of Service.

Deleted:  or as a member of 
an appeal panel

Deleted: (2) Managers are 
also authorised to make other 
day to day operational 
decisions on the management 
of their staff in accordance with 
the relevant procedures and 
conditions of employment. A list 
of these authorisations is held 
by the Director of Personnel & 
Development, and may be 
altered by the Head of Paid 
Service.¶
¶

Page Break

Topic ... [2]

Page 9



Property Management Protocol 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This Protocol provides a framework of principles, minimum requirements, 
levels of authority and delegations to ensure that KCC property is managed 
effectively. 

OVERARCHING PRINCIPLES 

2. A set of overarching principles govern the operation of this Protocol. These 
are: 

(1) All property owned, leased, hired or occupied by KCC and its service 
partners is held corporately (including KCC-owned schools, but not including 
Voluntary Aided, Foundation, Trust and Academy Schools). 

(2) The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support (in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform)
is responsible for ensuring that the occupation of all KCC property is in 
accordance with best management practice, in the interests of the Council as 
a whole, with the authority to direct the use, disposal or acquisition of any
Council land or property. 

(3) Where there are exceptional circumstances, and subject to the prior 
agreement of the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support, properties 
may continue to be managed at the discretion of Directorates. However, this 
discretion is subject to the corporate responsibilities of the Director of Property
and Infrastructure Support, who (in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform) has the authority to 
intervene in any property matters to protect KCC’s overall interests. 

(4) Any key or significant decision (as defined in the Constitution) affecting 
property will be added to the forthcoming decision list and discussed as the 
Cabinet Committee for Policy and Resources before going to the Cabinet 
Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform or the 
Director of Property and Infrastructure Support for formal decision.  

(5) Resolution of disputes on property matters is through the Cabinet 
Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform and then, if 
necessary, the Leader. 

(6) Under the Executive Scheme of Officer Delegations the Director of 
Property and Infrastructure Support has a number of specific delegations as 
set out in paragraph 31 below.

(7) All property transactions, or decisions which have an impact on 
property matters, should be referred to the Director of Property and 

Deleted:  to achieve maximum 
value for money

Deleted:  or 

Deleted: 

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: by Directorates 

Deleted:  and

Deleted:  within the Council’s 
budgetary framework and 
decision-making process

Deleted: have discretion to 
manage the property they 
occupy in order to promote 
effective service delivery. 

Deleted: operates 

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: 5

Page 10



Infrastructure Support who will consult with the Cabinet Member for Business 
Strategy, Performance and Health Reform above the thresholds set out in 
paragraph 31 below and seek the comments of all interested parties, including 
other relevant Cabinet Members, Directorates and Local Members, before the 
decision is taken to proceed. All decisions must be taken in accordance with 
the delegations set out in this Protocol and the decision making procedures 
set out in the Constitution.  

(8) This Protocol is organised in sections to reflect the lifecycle of property 
(acquisition – management in use – disposal) with additional requirements to 
support specific initiatives and exceptional circumstances. 

ACQUISITIONS 

3. Objective: To ensure that land and property requirements are appropriately 
identified and appraised; and that all the acquisitions have the necessary authority 
and funding, including an assessment of the impact on revenue of funding from 
borrowing and approved capital funding.  All acquisitions should be outlined in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan as part of service transformation programme and 
capital programme.

4. All acquisitions (freehold and leasehold) must be authorised by the Director of 
Property and Infrastructure Support (following consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform) either in accordance with 
the delegations set out in this Protocol, or the decision making procedures set out in 
the Constitution. 

Non-Highways Acquisitions 

5. For all non-highways acquisitions, the relevant Directorate will provide the 
Director of Property and Infrastructure Support with: 

(1) A definition of the service requirement giving rise to the proposed 
acquisition 

(2) A full financial appraisal of options for meeting service delivery 
requirements (developed as appropriate with support from the Property
and Infrastructure Support Group) and Bold Steps for Kent ambitions

(3) An evaluation of the other public sectors service needs to promote 
efficient asset collaboration across public agencies

6. The Cabinet Member for  Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform:

 (1) will be consulted on all proposed acquisitions

(2) will be kept informed of their progress 

(3) will determine if they or an officer will give approval for the acquisition. 

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted:  County Council’s

Deleted: 6

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management, the Director of 
Finance, other relevant Cabinet 
Members, Directorates and 
Local Members

Deleted: Council’s 

Deleted: paragraph 32

Deleted: , below

Deleted:  and in accordance 
with the Project Appraisal 
Handbook

Deleted: potential (if any) for 
joint use

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted:  and

Deleted: and 

Deleted: s/

Page 11



(4) may at any stage direct that a decision be referred to them. 

7. Where the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health 
Reform has determined that they will take the decision on a proposed acquisition, the 
matter will be dealt with in accordance with the appropriate provisions of this Protocol 
and decision making procedures set out in the Constitution, which will include 
consultation with Local Members.

8. Subject to paragraph 12 below, the use of compulsory powers for acquisitions 
must be agreed by both the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance 
and Health Reform and any other relevant Cabinet Members. 

Highways Acquisitions 

9. The Corporate Director for Environment & Enterprise will, in the case of all 
highway acquisitions, seek Local Member views as part of the consultation process 
for highways and traffic schemes. 

10. Highways scheme design and cost (including land acquisition) shall be 
approved by the Cabinet Member of Environment, Highways & Waste (or officer 
authorise by him) in accordance with the relevant KCC financial regulations.

11. Highways acquisitions may be made by the Director of Property and 
Infrastructure Support in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Business 
Strategy, Performance and Health Reform provided the scheme is in an approved 
programme with allocated funding for construction, including all compulsory purchase 
compensation and disturbance payments, or falls within blight policies. 

12. All other highways acquisitions (i.e. land not incorporated in the highway) will 
be referred by the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support to the Cabinet 
Member for  Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform, who will determine 
if they or an officer will give approval for the acquisition. Once the principle of 
acquisition of land is agreed, any decision whether or not to use compulsory powers 
will be decided by the Cabinet Member for Environment, Highways & Waste (in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and 
Health Reform) in accordance with the terms of this Protocol and the decision making 
procedures set out in the Constitution. 

MANAGEMENT & USE 

13. Objective: To ensure that property is used efficiently, effectively and 
economically with due regard to legislative requirements.  Regular asset reviews of 
property assets will be made in accordance with the Chartered Institute for Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 
(RICS) guidelines based on asset management best practice.  Assets will be 
identified for disposal or re-development on a regular basis.

14. The occupation and use of property by a Directorate is subject to the authority 
of the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support (in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform) to approve 

Deleted: The Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Support Services 
and Performance Management 

Deleted: i

Deleted: /her

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: s/

Deleted: Council’s 

Deleted: Local Members and 
the Scrutiny Committee will be 
sent a copy of the officer report 
at the same time as the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management, so that they may 
comment to the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management if they so wish.¶

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: (

Deleted: )

Deleted: Executive 

Deleted: Highways 

Deleted: Waste

Deleted: the Executive 
Director for Environment 
Highways & Waste (or officer 
authorised by him/her),

Deleted: Financial Procedure

Deleted:  and processes

Deleted: and

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: s/

Deleted: ; and that when it is 
no longer required for 
operational purposes it is 
formally declared surplus, at 
which point its management 
reverts to the Director of 
Property, and the budgetary 
implications of this are identified 
and reported to the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management.

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Page 12



all material changes to property, including change of use, the granting or taking of 
interests, reversion to operational use, alterations, additions, use by partners etc.
Such changes must be reported to the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Procurement for correct accounting treatment and apportionment of charges for 
CIPFA asset valuations.

Premises Management 

15. The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support has the authority to 
recommend reviews of all or part of the Council’s property portfolio, to determine if it 
is optimised in terms of its utilisation, cost and value and, within this, to challenge the 
retention or use of existing properties occupied by services or partners.

Building works 

16. Major capital works for properties should be subject to a formal project 
appraisal and should be consistent with existing financial approval and procurement 
processes.  Procurement of any building works will need to be subject to Spending 
the Council’s Money and delegations that have been set up.  The Director of Property 
and Infrastructure Support is authorised to enter into property contracts up to a value 
of £1million where the necessary approvals are in place.

Health & Safety 

17. Staff and services are required to ensure that in respect of all property matters 
all obligations under health and safety legislation and KCC health and safety policies 
are followed. 

DISPOSALS 

18. Objective: To ensure that land and property surplus to operational need is 
either reallocated to meet alternative needs or sold in line with statutory 
requirements. 

19. Directorates will notify the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support of:

(1) Any property (or part) that is: 

(a) Vacant 

(b) Required for future operational need 

(c) Not used for the principal purpose for which it is held 

(d) Likely to be surplus to requirements (with estimated time-scale) 

(2) Any operational issues associated with such property (e.g. longer term 
requirements) 

Deleted:  appropriations, 

Deleted: /

Deleted: or

Deleted: undertake 

Deleted:  the

Deleted:  or parts of it,

Deleted: Directorates

Deleted:  and/or KCC policy

Deleted: Held against a 

Page 13



(3) Any statutory/process issues relevant to its disposal (e.g. established 
consultation processes, reference to the Secretary of State, etc) 

(4) The recipient of the capital receipt and its intended use, as agreed with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance and Business Support and the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement

(5) Any other issues which need to be considered prior to disposal 

20. The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support may identify any property 
(or part) that is, or could be made, surplus to operational requirements. 

21. The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support will consult with the 
Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform on all 
disposals and inform them of the comments of Local Members. The Cabinet Member 
for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform will determine whether they
or an officer will give approval for disposal in accordance with this Protocol and the 
decision making procedures set out in the Constitution. 

Treatment of Capital Receipts (Rules and Processes) 

22. Capital receipts from disposals are deemed to be ‘Earmarked Capital 
Receipts’ or ‘General Receipts’.  

(1) Earmarked Capital Receipts – are proceeds from the sale of an 
identified (named) site (or number of sites) to be used for the funding of 
a specific scheme (or number of schemes where the schemes are 
intrinsically linked) and contained within previous Medium Term 
Financial Plans

(2) General Receipts are where receipts are not intrinsically linked 
(generally non-operational and surplus land and property), and they are 
applied to the overall capital programme, including reducing the impact 
of revenue and reinvestment.  

(3) Treatment of all receipts must conform with the Financial Regulations 
and the Capital Procedures set out in the Constitution.

(4) The decision as to whether receipts are earmarked or general shall be 
taken by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Business Support.

Kings Hill and East Kent Opportunities 

23. Any property matters (acquisition/disposals/leases) in relation to Kings Hill and 
East Kent Opportunities will be made in accordance with the provisions of this 
protocol.  The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support and the Cabinet 
Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform will consult with the 
Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economic Development and Executive 
Director of Regeneration and the Corporate Director for Business Strategy and 
Support.

Enterprise Fund 

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted:  s/he considers

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: i

Deleted: /her

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: s/

Deleted: Council’s 

Deleted: );

Deleted: and Process

Deleted: needs to 

Deleted: to

Deleted: ¶
SPECIAL PROVISIONS¶

Deleted: All decisions relating 
to the acquisition, management 
and disposal of land or property 
in the sole ownership of KCC or 
occupied by KCC at Kings Hill 
shall be dealt with in 
accordance with this Protocol 
and the decision making 
procedures set out in the 
Council’s Constitution by the 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Services and Performance 
Management with the advice of 
the Director of Property in 
consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and 
Economic Development.¶
24. All decisions and duties, 
including attending the 
Partnership Board and other 
such meetings, relating to the 
joint venture partnership under 
the Kings Hill development 
agreement (and subsequent 
variations) shall be dealt with by 
the Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Economic 
Development in consultation 
with Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Highways and 
Waste with the advice of the 
Executive Director for 
Regeneration and Economic 
Development.¶

Page 14



24. All transactions (acquisitions and disposals) undertaken through the Property 
Group ‘Enterprise Funds’ will be supported by a business case containing as a 
minimum: 

(1) Details of the proposal 

(2) The rationale for making the investment (against the agreed investment 
criteria for the Enterprise Fund, which may be varied from time to time) 

(3) Specific objectives to be met 

(4) The cost or income to KCC (revenue and capital) 

(5) The opportunities to be gained 

(6) Any return on investment including estimated revenue costs 

25. All transactions coming within the Enterprise Fund balancing limit of £10m 
may be authorised jointly by the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support and 
Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform and the Leader 
(subject to the delegations contained in paragraph 31). 

26. All transactions which cause the PEF1 Enterprise Fund to exceed its 
balancing limit of £10m will, following consultation with the relevant Senior Manager 
and the Leader, be recommended by the Director of Property and Infrastructure 
Support and Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement for decision by the 
Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform.

Urgent Decisions 

27. In exceptional circumstances, where an urgent decision is required on 
property matters, this will be taken by the Director of Property and Infrastructure 
Support in accordance with the provisions of this Protocol and only after consultation 
with the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform,
the Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement and the Director of Governance
and Law. If the matter is outside the delegations set out in paragraph 31, below, then 
the matter can only be authorised by the Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, 
Performance and Health Reform in accordance with the procedures for the taking of 
urgent decisions set out in the Constitution. 

28. Any decisions made under the ‘Urgent Decision’ arrangements will be 
reported to the relevant Senior Manager, Members of the Policy and Resources 
Cabinet Committee, the relevant Cabinet Member and Local Members.  

Financial Regulations 

29. All of the protocols set out in Financial Regulations and Schemes of 
Delegation must be adhered to, except where this Property Management Protocol 
specifically provides for alternative levels of authorisation. No transaction should be 
approved unless specific budgetary provision is identified, except where the 
purchase is approved under the authority given in Paragraph 27 above.  

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: Law & 

Deleted: 6

Deleted: Council’s 

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: s

Page 15



Reporting 

30. The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support will prepare each month a 
schedule of acquisitions, letting and disposals and send this to Democratic Services 
for publication via the Information Point.  This information will also be recorded at the 
Policy and Resources Cabinet Committee.

Delegation to Officers 

31. Subject to the consultation provisions set out in this Protocol, the Director of 
Property and Infrastructure Support is authorised to:

 (1) determine and settle the acquisition or disposal of any land or property, 
or an interest in land or property, where the consideration (including any associated 
works) does not exceed £1min any single transaction.

(2) determine and settle the terms of a lease (taken or granted) for any 
land or property, not exceeding a period of 20 years and/or where the consideration 
does not exceed £1m per annum in any single transaction. 

(3) determine any wayleaves or easements

(4) determine any leases/transfers required in relation to the Academies 
Act 2010.and subsequent changes.

32. The Director of Property and Infrastructure Support may delegate in writing to 
more junior officers any of their powers delegated under this protocol. 

Supporting Mechanisms 

33. Whilst having no Constitutional or decision-making status, the management of 
the Council’s property will be exercised through a variety of mechanisms which 
amplify and support this protocol. These forums or groups have no Constitutional 
rights but allow different parts of the Council to provide feedback and advice on 
emerging property policy, key workstreams and informal updates on the capital 
programme.  The key mechanisms and their purpose are summarised below: 

1) Strategic Property Asset Forum chaired by the Cabinet Member for 
Business Strategy, Performance and Health Reform provides a forum to 
discuss and agree the strategic direction for property management and key 
property related initiatives. It provides a mechanism to assess whether this 
protocol is working in practice and to identify and resolve issues with 
regard to corporate and service responsibilities. 

2) Project Advisory Group (PAG) considers capital projects and significant 
changes to capital projects and ensures that proper planning and 
processes have been followed and risk assessments undertaken in line 
with the Constitution, the project appraisal handbook and associated 
financial procedures. It makes recommendations to the Leader for 
schemes to be included in KCC’s capital programme. 

3) Property Business Plan identifies the main priorities of the Property and 
Infrastructure Support division and other formal advisory groups

Deleted: 1

Deleted: dealt with by the 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support Services and 
Performance Management or 
by him/herself, 

Deleted:  determine and settle

Deleted: 2

Deleted: Property Board
chaired by the Director of 
Property provides a forum to 

Deleted: Council’s 

Deleted: Group 

Deleted: prepared in 
accordance with KCC’s 
planning guidelines 

Deleted: Group 

Deleted: includes as an annex 
a schedule of properties for 
disposal. This provides 
delegated authority to proceed 
with disposals in line with the 
provisions of this protocol.

Page 16



4) Medium Term Financial Plan sets out KCC’s spending priorities and 
financial allocations over the medium term. All capital schemes are subject 
to the appraisal and decision making processes around the Capital 
Programme and the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

Information to the Council and Scrutiny 

34. Transactions proposed to be authorised by the Cabinet Member for Business 
Strategy, Performance and Health Reform are subject to the normal processes of 
publication to the Policy and Resources Cabinet Committee prior to the Cabinet or 
Cabinet Portfolio Holder taking a decision.  The matter may also be called in by the 
Scrutiny Committee.

Deleted: /or

Deleted: The Director of 
Property will prepare each 
month a schedule of property 
transactions dealt with by the 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support Services and 
Performance Management or 
him/herself, and send this to 
Head of Democratic Services 
for publication.¶
35.

Deleted: Corporate Support 
Services and Performance 
Management

Deleted: and scrutiny

Deleted:  for 

Deleted:  Member

Deleted: s

Page 17



Page 1: [1] Deleted Angela Evans 04/10/12 14:59:00 

Post Appointing Body Adviser 

Head of Paid 
Service

Personnel Committee to 
interview and report to 
Council with recommendation 

As determined by the 
Committee 

Senior
Manager

Personnel Committee or 
Member Panel (Sub-
Committee) 

Head of Paid Service and/or 
Senior Manager 

The Personnel Committee may vary these arrangements, except those 
relating to the Head of Paid Service. 

Page 5: [2] Deleted Angela Evans 04/10/12 15:24:00 

(2) Managers are also authorised to make other day to day 
operational decisions on the management of their staff in accordance with the 
relevant procedures and conditions of employment. A list of these 
authorisations is held by the Director of Personnel & Development, and may 
be altered by the Head of Paid Service. 

Topic Decision Minimum Level of Decision

Recruitment and 
Appointment 

Agree the recruitment and 
appointment of staff graded 
on Kent Scale 10 and above 
who are not covered by 
either the Personnel 
Committee or the County 
Council. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Assistance with 
Employee Relocation 
Costs

Application of the internal 
relocation scheme. 

Application of the enhanced 
relocation management 
scheme.

Updating of the relocation 
allowances. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Director of Personnel & 
Development  

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Application of 
Mortgage and Rent 
Subsidy Schemes 

Application of Mortgage 
Subsidy and Rent Subsidy 
Schemes.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Acting-up
Arrangements

Agree acting up 
arrangement and determine 
appropriate payment where 
an employee is required to 
undertake the duties of a 
higher graded post on a 
temporary basis. 

Head of Service/Support Unit 
to agree and review annually 
or earlier should the need 
arise

Extending service 
beyond the age of 65 
years, and the 

Approval to extend the 
service of an employee 
beyond the normal 

Senior Manager 

Page 18



employment of 
pensioners 

retirement age of 65 and the 
employment of pensioners, 
subject the guidelines set out 
in the Procedures and 
Conditions of Employment 
manual, the LGPS 
regulations and insurance 
provisions. 

Termination of 
Employment

Termination of employment 
on redundancy, early 
retirement, incapability and 
disciplinary grounds in 
accordance with KCC’s 
Employment Stability and 
Early Retirement Policies, 
and the Incapability and 
Disciplinary Procedures. 

Decisions on redundancies 
and early retirements for 
Senior Managers to be taken 
by the Head of Paid Service 
following consultation with 
the political group leaders 
and the Chief Finance 
Officer 

All other redundancies and 
early retirements (other than 
ill health) to be jointly agreed 
by the Director of Personnel 
& Development and Senior 
Manager. Plus details of all 
early retirements to be 
published on a six monthly 
basis for Members 

All other terminations of 
employment to be agreed by 
Senior Manager

Use of Ex-Employees 
as Consultants 

Approval to use ex-
employees as consultants on 
a “contract for service” basis 
with reference to the Code of 
Practice on Tendering and 
Contracts.

Senior Manager 

Withholding of 
Redundancy Payment 

Agreement to the 
withholding of a redundancy 
payment to an employee 
who unreasonably refuses 
suitable alternative 
employment.

Jointly agreed by Senior 
Manager and Director of 
Personnel & Development 

Early Retirements on 
Efficiency,
Redundancy and 
Voluntary Grounds

Awarding of augmented 
service for early retirement 
under the LGPS Regulations 
1997 in accordance with 
KCC’s Early Retirement 
Policy.

In wholly exceptional 

Jointly agreed by Senior 
Manager, Director of 
Personnel & Development 

Page 19



circumstances, varying 
KCC’s Early Retirement 
Policy in respect of awarding 
augmented service within 
the LGPS regulations. 

Waiving of an actuarial 
reduction for voluntary early 
retirements agreed on 
compassionate grounds 
where the 85-year rule is not 
met. 

and the Pensions Manager, 
following consultation with 
the relevant Cabinet Member 
and Chief Finance Officer 

Payment of Gratuities Agree to the payment of a 
gratuity on the retirement of 
an employee who has a 
minimum of 5 years 
continuous service and who 
was not eligible to join the 
Pension Scheme for part of 
that service. 

Senior Manager 

Employer Discretions 
under the Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 
1997

Exercise of employer 
discretions under the Local 
Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 1997 in 
accordance with KCC’s 
policy statement. 

Jointly agreed by Senior 
Manager, Director of 
Personnel & Development, 
Pensions Manager, following 
consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet Member and Chief 
Finance Officer 

Changes to NJC Pay 
and Conditions 

Agree the implementation of 
NJC pay awards and 
changes to conditions of 
service in accordance with 
NJC agreements. 

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Advances of Salary Agree payment of an 
advance of salary. 

Senior Manager 

Dealing with salaries 
and pay progression 
outside of the normal 
procedures 

In exceptional circumstances 
agree to pay an employee 
on a spot salary or on a 
salary above the evaluated 
grade for the post. 

Senior Manager

Payment of 
outstanding salary to a 
named individual in 
the event of death in 
service of an 
employee

Payment of the outstanding 
salary of an employee who 
has died in service to an 
individual where the next of 
kin is not immediately 
obvious.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Extension of Sick Pay Agree conversion of any 
period of sick pay 
entitlement from half to full 
pay.

Senior Manager 

Page 20



Agree extension of sick pay 
beyond the aggregate of full 
and half pay. 

Director of Personnel & 
Development, on 
recommendation of Senior 
Manager

Recovery of Sick Pay Agree recovery of sick pay 
where employees have been 
off sick due to their own 
misconduct.

Director of Personnel & 
Development, in conjunction 
with Chief Finance Officer 

Payment of Merit 
Awards to Kent 
Scheme Staff

Approval to pay merit 
awards to Kent Scheme staff 
which do not total more than 
10% of an employee’s gross 
annual salary in any one 
financial year. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Payment of Honoraria 
to NJC Staff 

Approval to pay honoraria to 
NJC staff to maximum of 
£500 or 10% of salary, 
whichever is the greater, in 
any one financial year. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Payment of enhanced 
overtime during 
emergency 
procedures 

Approve enhanced overtime 
payments to staff on grades 
F to I where “emergency 
procedures” have been 
invoked.

Senior Manager 

Payment of overtime 
outside of the normal 
arrangements

Exceptionally approve 
overtime rates which are 
different to those set out in 
the Procedures and 
Conditions of Employment 
manual.

Senior Manager 

Payment of and 
Revisions to Plus or 
Excess Rates 

Approve the payment of and 
revisions to plus rates or 
excess rates to staff 
employed on NJC 
conditions.

Senior Manager 

Standby Allowances Approve updating of Standby 
allowance rates under the 
NJC and Kent Schemes. 

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Sleeping-in Duty, 
Special Needs (for 
Nursery Staff) and 
Laboratory
Technicians 
Allowances, 
Homeworking 
allowances and Food 
Charges

Approve updating of 
Sleeping –in Duty 
Allowances, Special Needs 
Allowances for Nursery Staff, 
Laboratory Technicians 
Allowances and Food 
Charges.

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Annual Leave Buy-out  Agree, for exceptional 
reasons, to buy-out an 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Page 21



employee’s annual leave to 
a maximum of 5 days in any 
one leave year. 

Leave for Extraneous 
Duties, e.g. JPs, Local 
Authority Members, 
School Governors 

Grant an employee up to 18 
days paid leave per year for 
undertaking extraneous 
duties.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Special Leave for 
Trade Union 
Conferences 

Approval for representatives 
nominated by a recognised 
Trade Union to be granted 
up to 5 days paid leave to 
attend annual/biennial 
conferences 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Special Leave for 
Retained Fire Fighters 

Approval for retained fire 
fighters to be granted up to 2 
weeks additional paid leave 
to attend recognised courses 
concerning their fire service 
duties.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Special Leave for 
Election Duties 

Grant paid leave to 
employees acting as 
Presiding Officers and Poll 
Clerks at Parliamentary, 
European Parliament, 
County Council or County 
District Council elections. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Special Leave for 
Service in Non-
Regular Forces 

Grant volunteer members of 
the non-regular forces up to 
two weeks additional paid 
leave per year to attend 
camp.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Participation in the 
Reserve Armed 
Forces

Where appropriate grant 
approval for an employee to 
enter an agreement to 
become a reservist in the 
regular reserve forces or the 
volunteer reserves as 
appropriate.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Special Leave for 
Parliamentary 
Candidates 

Grant special leave – 3 
weeks with pay, 1 week 
without – to employees 
holding non-politically 
restricted posts who are 
adopted as candidates at a 
Parliamentary or European 
Parliament election. 

Senior Manager 

Paid time off to pursue 
personal legal action 
against another 

Exceptionally grant paid time 
off to an employee to pursue 
personal legal action against 

Senior Manager 

Page 22



individual or 
organisation

another individual or 
organisation.

Compassionate Leave 
beyond normal 
provisions 

In exceptional circumstances 
grant paid compassionate 
leave beyond the normal 
provisions of 10 days in any 
one leave year. 

Senior Manager 

Unpaid Leave Approval for employees to 
be granted up to and 
including 10 days unpaid 
leave. 

Approvals for employees to 
be granted between 11 days 
and 6 months unpaid leave. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Senior Manager 

Concessionary Leave Approval in exceptional 
circumstances of an 
additional paid 
concessionary day’s leave. 

Head of Paid Service (in 
consultation with Chairman 
of Personnel Committee) 

Reimbursement for 
Meals

Exceptionally agree the 
reimbursement of 
reasonable and actual 
expenditure on a meal. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Reimbursement of 
Hotel Expenses 

Exceptionally agree the 
reimbursement of 
reasonable and actual hotel 
expenses incurred. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Travelling Allowances Allocation of car user status 
(casual, essential, lease) in 
accordance with established 
procedures to posts where 
use of a motor vehicle is 
required in order to perform 
the duties. 

Exceptionally grant essential 
car user status on criteria 
other than that set out in the 
Procedures and Conditions 
of Employment manual. 

Updating of travelling 
allowances and charges for 
county owned cars. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Head of Service/Support Unit

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Travel to and from 
Joint Consultative 
Committees by 
employee
representatives 

Approval for an employee 
representative to use his 
own car and be paid a 
travelling allowance when 
travelling to and from Joint 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Page 23



Consultative Committees. 

Use of First Class 
Travel 

In exceptional circumstances 
approve the use of first class 
travel.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Payment of Travelling 
Expenses at work 

In exception circumstances 
agree the payment of 
travelling expenses to and 
from work. 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Career Breaks Agree applications for career 
breaks.

Head of Service/Support Unit

Car Loans Setting the maximum 
amount that can be granted 
for a car loan. 

Setting the rate of interest for 
car loans. 

Chief Finance Officer 

Benchmark Lease Car Setting the benchmark car 
for the lease car scheme. 

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Secondments Agree secondments outside 
of KCC. 

Agree secondments within 
KCC.

Head of Paid Service or 
Senior Managers 

Head of Service/Support Unit

Changes to the 
delegations and 
authorisations to Line 
Managers

Agree changes to the Officer 
delegations. 

Agree changes to the 
authorisations to Line 
Managers. 

Head of Paid Service

Director of Personnel & 
Development 

Page 24



Appendix 2 

(1)  As a statutory requirement, Article 11 of the Constitution provides for 
appropriate resources to be made available to the Monitoring Officer and the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Procurement in his role as Section 151 Officer.

(2) The Committee is asked to consider that this Article in the Constitution be 
extended to include the Head of Paid Service in order to be able properly exercise 
and fulfil this important statutory role. 

(3) Some Members asked that consideration be given as to whether or not other 
post-holders who discharge a statutory role should be included in this proposal. 

(4) Having looked at this again it is our view that the extension of provision of 
resources to include the Head of Paid Service role is reasonable, appropriate and 
sufficient given that the Head of Paid Service has to work with the Corporate 
Management Team, and in particular, the Monitoring Officer and Director of Finance 
and Procurement (Section 151 Officer)  to ensure that the County Council is not 
exposed to unnecessary risk both in terms of the law, financial risk and ensuring the 
County Council, has sufficient resources to discharge its statutory and approved 
discretionary services. 

The Executive Summary of the Constitution sets out that:

“The Council, advised by the Head of Paid Service and the Leader, determines the 
overall officer structure to deliver the Council’s responsibilities, under the 
management of the Corporate Management Team. The Council appoints the Head of 
Paid Service and designates appropriate senior officers as Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Finance Officer, who are responsible for resolving constitutional disputes and 
other matters laid down in the Constitution.” 

and Article 11.1 includes: 

(2) Structure. The overall management structure is determined by the Council 
on the advice of the Head of Paid Service and the Leader. The Head of Paid 
Service reports to the Cabinet and the Council on the manner in which the 
discharge of the Council’s functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade of 
officers required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of officers. 

(5) To discharge this statutory function requires the Head of Paid Service to work 
across the whole Council with the support of all Corporate Directors. Other officers 
who have a statutory function in terms of discharging an element of the Council’s 
activity are able to look to the Head of Paid Services for any necessary resources. 
Therefore, it is our view that these post-holders do not warrant the same specific 
provision of resources as part of Article 11. 

(6) We therefore ask the Committee to recommend to the County Council that 
Article 11 paragraph 11(5) be amended to read as follows: 

Page 25



“Provision of sufficient resources to the Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Finance Officer with such officers’ accommodation and other resources as are 
in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.” 

Page 26


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 5 October 2012
	4 New Governance Arrangements for Kent County  Council - Changes to the Constitution

